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STANSTEAD CHURCH

Visitors to St. James' Church, Stanstead, frequently comment what a neat
and tidy little church it is. Its interior is always clean and looks well
cared for, with the decoration in a good state. Indeed, it is only ten years
since the chancel was re-decorated.

But now the building stands in danger unless £3,000 can be raised for
restoration work to the tower and to the roofs, and this presents a frightening
task for a village of only 270 people.

There was a church on the hilltop overlooking the valley of the little
river Glem at the time of Doomsday, but nothing of it remains, although some
of the material may have been re-used in the existing church.

The oldest part now is the tower, which was built early in the 14th
century. The rest of the church is about 100 years younger - about 550 years
0ld. On the outside of the porch are two fine stone dragons looking down on
the doorway and the remains of a 'stoup' which when the church was built was
used to hold holy water.

Victorian Restoration

Inside the church the Victorian generation of church restorers did a great
deal of work. And Stanstead had its typical Victorian rectors - Samuel Sheen,
father and son (1823 and 1867), who have left a very permanent mark on the
church they cared for. Their major structural work was the opening of the
arch linking the nave and the tower which was made in 1877. Before that there
was only a doorway and above it. a gallery. All the flooring of the church )
and most of the fittings, except the altar, which was given in 1961 as a
memorial, are Victorian. They are not outstanding, but they help to give the
church its warm, friendly appearance.

In the north windows of the nave there are remains of glass that is as
0ld as the building itself. All that remains is two coats of arms and the
tops of two canopies under which there must once have been figures. The arms
are those of Wachecham (or Watsham) (two crescents) and Barrey (three bear
hea,ds). These two families were united some time just before 1400 when John
Barrey married Elizabeth, daughter of Sir Robert Wachechem. Their figures
in the window were probably destroyed in the days of Cromwell in the 17th

L Hidden Treasurcs

But the church has other treasures which it is not possible to show. One
of these is the oldest of the peal of six bells, which was cast in 1544 by
Stephen Tonnie I, whose work is extremely rare; there being two examples at
Wood Ditton, Cambridgeshire, deted 1544, and the church bell at Felstead,
Essex, 1546. The Stanstead bell has much ornamentation including the Tudor
arms.

Another treasure is two pages of an o0ld book called 'Le Officio Misse',
written in about 1325 by a priest, Nicholas Trevet (C1 258-1328). This book,
written in Latin, is about the Mass or Communion, and there are only three
copies of it still in existence. The Stanstead copy was written by hand - for
this is before the days of printing - probably about 1400, and must have
belonged to a rector of that time.
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In due course the book was destroyed and all that now remains is one
double page. This was used to test pens in the oldest of the church registers
and there are several names writbten in its margins before being entered in the
registers, including John Burgess (about 1570) and Jerome Calfe (about 1620).

The manuscript was only discovered and identified in 1938 by the then
rector, the Rev. We Spreckly, and Dr. Atkinson, of Cambridge University. This
year the original has been lent to Moyses Hall Museum in Bury St. Edmunds,
and excellent photographic reproductions by Mr. R. A. Burn have been put on
show in the church. ¥

Ministry
Stanstead has not had a rector of its own since 1950, and indeed it is
impossible for a village of this size to expect a rector of its own while
there is such a shortasge of clergy. Most villages today share their parson
with one or even two or three other parishes.

Last year an experiment was begun when the Rector of Sudbury was made
curate~in-charge and the curate of Sudbury, the Rev. R. He. Norburn, went to
live at Stanstead, while remaining in title curate of Sudbury. He now
divides his time between work in both parishes.

Restoration

One small piece of repair work has been completed - to the lych gate.
The old rotten oak sole-vlates have been replaced with concrete and the whole
stracture. gtrengthened. . Now at last the approach to the church is safe and
the church looks most attractive in the sebting of its well=Kept ChUrchyard.

The Tower

Tt does not require much searching to see the cracks that have opened
in the tower walls. About 70 years ago the bell frame was enlarged to take
an extra bell, and to fit it in the tower the three feet thick walls were
cut away.

The result of this was to weaken the tower and the vibration of the
bells did the rest! It is now necessary to make good this weakening and the
walls inside must be rebuilt to their original thickness and the cracks must
be banded in to the rest of the walls.

The Roofs

The architect considers that the roofs of both the nave and chancel
appear to be in a poor condition for in places the tiles have sunk. Probably
the roofs will have to be stripped and re-tiled using as meny as possible of
the o0ld tiles again. But this work is not considered as pressing as that on
the tower.

The Cost

A rough estimate of the cost of all the work is about £3,000 and a small
committee has been formed by the Parochial Church Council to plen the raising
of it.




